Government of Puerto Rico Puerto Rico Planning Board San Juan, Puerto Rico



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Proposal Reference Number: 2019-0001-RFP-01Project Title: Project Management Services for CodeEnforcement GrantRFP Issue Date:January 20, 2019Proposal Due Date:February 12, 2019, 12:00pm AST

HMGP 4339-0001-PR

Table of Contents

I.	RFP Description
A.	Project Overview
B.	Inquiries, Addenda and Materials
1.	RFP Inquiries and Correspondence
2.	Replies and Addenda; Amendments 5
3.	Acknowledgement of Addenda 5
4.	Use of the RFP Materials
C.	Notification of Errors or Omissions
D.	Ownership of Proposal
E.	Contractual Status of the RFP
F.	Cancellation of the RFP
II.	Contact Information and RFP Schedule
A.	RFP Contact
B.	RFP Schedule
III.	Description of the Project and its Objectives7
IV.	Scope of Work and Services
A.	Project Implementation and PMO Scope of Implementation
B.	PMO Capability and Objectives
C.	Functional Role of the PMO14
1.	PMO Governance Structure
2.	Strategic Planning / Implementation-Sequencing Roadmap
3.	Operational Support
D.	Contract Management
E.	Quality Assurance
F.	General Management Responsibilities for Project Managers Assigned to Entities 17
G.	General Grant Management Responsibilities
V.	Notice to Proceed
VI.	Prohibited Communications

VII.	Most Advantageous Proposal	. 19
VIII.	Proposal Submittal Requirements	. 20
A.	How to Submit	. 20
B.	Required Contents	. 20
C.	Submittal Deadline	. 20
D.	Rejections, Alterations, or Withdrawals of Proposal Documents	. 20
E.	Validity of Proposal	. 21
IX.	Evaluation and Selection	. 21
A.	General	. 21
B.	Completeness	. 21
C.	Evaluation Criteria	. 22
D.	Finalist Interview	. 24
E.	Selection	. 24
F.	Ambiguity	. 25
G.	Unit Prices and Extensions	. 25
H.	Additional Information	. 25
I.	Partial Contract Award	. 25
J.	No Commitment	. 25
K.	Pre-award Protest Procedures	. 25
L.	Single Proposal Response	. 26
M.	Other Considerations	. 27
X.	Small and Minority-Owned Businesses, Women's Business	. 27
A.	Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Firms	. 27
XI.	Respondent Requirements	. 27
A.	Legal Entities	. 27
B.	Required Qualifications	. 28
XII.	Conflicts of Interest	. 29
XIII.	Subcontractors	. 31
XIV.	Proposal Format	. 31
A.	Cover Letter and Table of Contents (2 pages)	. 32
B.	Experience and Capacity (8-12 pages)	. 32

C.	Approach and Methodology (4-8 pages)	
D.	Price Proposal	
E.	Commitment to Compliance with all Applicable Federal and Puerto Rico Regu	lations (2-4
pag	ges)	
F.	Local Parties (1-4 pages)	
G.	Required Forms (Appendix)	
H.	Additional Information	
1	1. Cost of Preparing Proposals	
2	2. Payment Terms and Method of Payment	
3	3. Payment Terms	
4	4. Method of Payment	
I.	Federal Grant Requirements	
J.	Proprietary Data and Confidentiality	
K.	Receipt, Handling and Opening of Proposals	
L.	Neutrality	
XV.	7. Definitions and Acronyms	
XV	I. Appendix	
1	l. Cover Page	41
2	2. Deliverables	
3	3. Reference Form	
4	4. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire	
5	5. Nepotism Statement	
6	5. Non-Collusion Statement	
7	7. Federal Grant Terms and Clauses	50

I. RFP Description

A. Project Overview

The Puerto Rico Planning Board (the "PRPB") is issuing this Request for Proposals (this "RFP") to solicit proposals from interested, experienced and qualified project management firms (the "Proponents" or "Responders") to provide comprehensive coordination, monitoring and support services in strategically managing development, implementation and administration ("Project Management Services") for the Federal Post Disaster Code Enforcement – Island-wide (5%) Grant under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (FEMA-4339-DR-PR/HMPG Project #4339-0001) (the "Project").

The PRPB may obtain grant funds from the federal government to finance, in whole or in part, the Project Management Services and other activities of the Project. Therefore, this RFP and the contract to be executed between the PRPB and the successful Proponent(s) are governed by certain federal terms and conditions for federal grants. The Appendix to this RFP contains a listing of these required terms and conditions that must be acknowledged by the Proponents as part of each Proposal. Any funds disallowed by any federal grantor shall be disallowed from fee or compensation to the selected Proponent. Accordingly, Proponents shall comply with all applicable federal requirements during their participation in this RFP, including all requirements set forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, which clearly outline methods of procurement to be followed by non-federal entities, in addition to all applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws and regulations.

B. Inquiries, Addenda and Materials

1. RFP Inquiries and Correspondence

All inquiries and correspondence related to requirements or processes of this RFP should use the Project title "**Code Enforcement Project Management RFP**" and must be submitted in writing electronically or by courier no later than *January 28, 2019,* to the contact addresses provided in Section II. Inquiries presented, and all replies will be provided to all other respondents to this RFP who have provided a coordination Point of Contact. Any violation of this policy regarding communications may be ground for rejection of a Proposal at any time.

If a Proponent believes that specific matters are not sufficiently described or explained in the RFP, or that a conflict or discrepancy exists between or within the RFP, or with any Applicable Laws or Regulations or other standard or requirement,

the Proponent shall submit a written request for clarification to the PRPB as provided above.

2. Replies and Addenda; Amendments

Responses to inquiries which directly affect an interpretation or effect a change to this RFP will be issued in writing by addendum and posted to http://www.jp.pr.gov. All such addenda issue by PRPB prior to the submittal deadline shall be considered part of this RFP. PRPB shall not be bound by any reply to any inquiry unless such reply is made in writing and formally included as a published addendum.

PRPB may change or revise any part of this RFP by issuing an amendment in the form of an addendum to the RFP. The last day for publishing an addendum on the PRPB website will be *February 8, 2019*.

3. Acknowledgement of Addenda

All addenda to the RFP will be posted to PRPB's website. The proponent must exercise due care and is responsible for visiting PRPB's website to learn of and review any published addenda. Any proposal that does not adhere to all published addenda will be considered non-responsive. Proponents should use the utmost care to make sure their proposals are complete and error-free when submitted.

4. Use of the RFP Materials

The information contained in the RFP shall be used by the Proponent only in its preparation of its Proposal made pursuant to this RFP and shall be treated as confidential information by the Proponent. Any other use, dissemination, publication or re-use of this information by the Proponent is expressly prohibited. The PRPB may use any Proponent's Proposal material in any legal manner, including the public disclosure of such information.

C. Notification of Errors or Omissions

Proposals may be corrected at any time before the submission deadline. After deadline, the proponent bears the burden of submitting and adequately written proposal that contains all the information required under this solicitation. PRPB may allow a proponent to correct a mistake or clerical error in a proposal through clarifications (as opposed to discussions), only when both the existence of the

mistake or error and the amount intended by the proponent are apparent from the face of the proposal. Mistakes or clerical errors shall not be used to cure proposal deficiencies or material omissions, materially alter the technical or cost elements of the proposal, and/or otherwise revise the proposal.

PRPB shall not be responsible or liable for any errors and/or misrepresentation that results from solicitations that are inadvertently incomplete, ambiguous, inconsistent, or obviously erroneous.

D. Ownership of Proposal

All materials submitted in response to this RFP shall become the property of PRPB. Selection or rejection of a proposal does not affect this provision.

E. Contractual Status of the RFP

This RFP is not binding on the PRPB. The PRPB does not assume any responsibility for the costs incurred in the preparation of the Proposal or related activities of any Proponent.

This RFP has been prepared solely to solicit Proposals. They are not contract offers. The only document that will be binding on the PRPB will be the Contract duly executed by the PRPB and the successful Proponent after the selection process and the award of a Contract in adherence to all federal and state procurement and contracting laws and regulations.

F. Cancellation of the RFP

The PRPB or the Government of Puerto Rico may cancel the RFP, postpone the Proposal Due Date or cancel the award of a contract at any time prior to the date of execution of a contract.

II. Contact Information and RFP Schedule

A. RFP Contact

Proposals must be submitted electronically to the following contact:

Puerto Rico Planning Board Post Disaster Code Enforcement (DR-4339-0001-PR) Attention: María del C. Gordillo Pérez – Chairwoman <u>rfp@jp.pr.gov</u>

Physical address:

Puerto Rico Planning Board Floor 16th North Tower Roberto Sánchez Vilella Government Center José de Diego Ave. Santurce, Puerto Rico

B. RFP Schedule

The following is the projected schedule for this RFP. This schedule is subject to change at the discretion of PRPB. Changes to the schedule will be published on PRPB's website. It is the responsibility of respondents to periodically review the website for any changes to this timeline.

Table 1 - RFP Schedule

TARGET DATE	EVENT
January 20, 2019	Publication of RFP
January 28, 2019	Deadline for submitting questions and requests for clarifications
February 8, 2019Last day for publishing addenda on the PRPB's website	
February 12, 2019Proposal submission deadline (1200 AST)	
February 19, 2019	Selection of competitive range of proponents
February 22, 2019 Finalist interviews (if applicable)	
February 28, 2019	Selection

III. Description of the Project and its Objectives

Hurricanes Irma and Maria caused catastrophic damage throughout Puerto Rico. Preliminaries assessments established than, approximately, 250,000 properties were damage as result. Of these, it is estimated than 85,000 to 90,000 structures were informally constructed, meaning that they were not built in compliance with governing construction codes ("Codes"). This estimate is based on *Authorization Letters for Services* issued by Office of Management of Permits (*Oficina de Gerencia de Permiso* or "OGPe") or the Autonomous Municipalities, a process intended to ensure the approval of the installation of public services – namely aqueducts, sewers, and electricity – for residential service prior to the completion of the permitting process, as established in Administrative Order OGPE-2011-03.

In addition, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (the "USACE") has received approximately 65,000 "*blue roof*" requests, to provide temporary repairs to structures that sustained roof damage as a result of Hurricanes Irma and Maria. These temporary roof requests almost certainly represent damaged structures that were built informally, or that were situated in areas that had not been previously identified as high-risk areas. Current estimates of structures that may be "substantially damaged" are more than 30,000. Preliminary assessments of the damage that occurred to private, public, residential, and commercial buildings indicate that structures built in compliance with codes had significantly higher success rates in withstanding the high winds and flooding that Hurricanes Irma and Maria brought to the island.

To assure the federal investment in Puerto Rico's infrastructure, PRPB will enforce regulation compliance through: orientations, notifications, fines, and, if necessary, the administrative and/or judicial process. The federal grant obtained by the PRPB will allow the PRPB to hire and maintain a sufficient number of Code Enforcement officials on staff for both PRPB and OGPe and will result in a financially self-sufficient program going forward. This self-sufficiency is critical to build capability and capacity, so that proper Code Enforcement may occur and the rate of informal construction – which is a threat to public health and safety – will be significantly decreased, with the future goal of eradicating it completely.

The PRPB's overall objectives for the Project are to:

- 1. Enhance and support the existing system of the Audits and Complaints Bureau of PRPB for the inspection of permits, to verify compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of the federal, Puerto Rico, and local governments (the "Applicable Laws and Regulations"), in order to ensure public health and safety, and increase the resiliency of Puerto Rico's building stock.
- 2. Build the capacity of the personnel engaged in the Enforcement of Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes ("Enforcement Personnel") and to support Enforcement Personnel of the PRPB, OGPe, and Tier 5 Municipalities.
- 3. Investigate and audit complaints made by residents, agencies, municipalities, and *motu proprio*, develop processes for providing notification of violations and referrals to the PRPB's legal division, to ensure that compliance is achieved in all cases.

- 4. Increase the PRPB's capacity to enforce compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes for all construction types, to reduce vulnerability to natural hazards such as hurricanes, earthquakes, and flooding, as well as any other disasters.
- 5. Enhance and strengthen the decision-making process through systemic data collection (i.e., construction type, materials, etc.), to help identify and evaluate vulnerabilities, hazards, and risks from natural and other hazards, to ensure that risk-appropriate building Codes, methods, and practices are implemented.
- 6. Increase data-sharing among Government of Puerto Rico ("GPR") Entities, such as the Insurance Commissioner's Office, to ensure decision-making and the application of Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes is consistent across all GPR Entities, using the best available data.
- 7. Substantially increase the number of technical experts available to assist with compliance and Enforcement in the future. For example, increasing the number of Certified Floodplain Managers (CFM) in Puerto Rico will help ensure Enforcement of and compliance with flood damage prevention ordinances and floodplain management requirements and best practices.
- 8. Establish a methodology to measure the impacts of this proposed work, with an emphasis on reducing the number of "informally" constructed structures to allow the PRPB and OGPe to make necessary adjustments as the programs envisioned by the Project move forward.

To achieve these objectives, this project will support and enhance an island-wide program to enforce planning and zoning requirements, permit regulations, and building codes, resulting in significant reduction or eradication of informal construction in Puerto Rico and creating a more resilient building stock. This support and enhancement will come through a multi-layered approach, designed to create a strong foundation for Puerto Rico's future:

- 1. Increased staff support for both the PRPB and OGPe;
- 2. Investment in technological solutions to support operations;
- 3. Establishment of a robust, recurring training curriculum & outreach program;
- 4. Increased data collection and sharing between GPR Entities; and

5. Increased pool of trained experts to maintain and enhance resiliency and compliance in the future.

To support this work, the PRPB proposes capacity building by increasing the number of PRPB and OGPe personnel. Key to this work is the role of inspectors and auditors, who will serve as Regulations and Code Enforcement Officials ("RCEOs") and will be contracted to inspect and audit permits to promote and ensure compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations. This will increase the capability and capacity of OGPe personnel, who review permits presented by professional engineers and architects in order to ensure compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes.

Additionally, this increase in personnel will allow the PRPB to inspect and enforce Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes for other GPR Entities, such as PREPA and PRASA, to facilitate enforcement of compliance with their own laws and regulations. All enforcement action will also serve to protect the federal investment in Puerto Rico by ensuring that all public infrastructure meets Applicable Laws and Regulations and (construction) Codes and standards, thereby furthering the overarching disaster goal of protecting the federal investment in Puerto Rico's public infrastructure.

To ensure efficiency, this Project will incorporate technology solutions, such as Geographic Information Systems (GIS), satellite imagery, enhancement of the permits management system, and field collection tools, among other technologies. These technologies will create more efficiency in the permitting and inspection processes, and will greatly increase data sharing between GPR Entities with responsibilities for development, public health and safety, and enforcement action.

The PRPB will contract experts to conduct trainings and workshops to refresh/teach all contractors and staff the local building codes and standards, the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), applicable historic preservation/environmental regulations and statutes, and other related topics. With these skills, the RCEOs will conduct inspections on permits, and the capability and expertise of available personnel will be significantly enhanced. Training and workshops will also be provided to elected officials, members of the judiciary, and lawmakers, to better inform them of the planning and zoning processes, Code requirements and rationales, and the reasoning for how the decision is made to issue or deny a permit for construction and/or development. This training will be provided to help decisionmakers make better decisions regarding future development, waivers, and enforcement of existing and future Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes.

There will also be a significant outreach program to support these efforts, to provide information to all stakeholders – the public, lawmakers, the judiciary, elected officials, etc. – regarding the requirements and benefits of compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes. This outreach will also educate on the dangers of "informal" construction, the benefits of compliance with the permitting and inspection processes and will provide reminders of the penalties for and risks inherent in engaging in "informal" construction activities.

Data collection and sharing among state agencies will ensure consistency of application among all involved parties. For example, the inclusion of the Insurance Commissioner's Office is key, as its role in the identification of risks is critical. This Project will create a claims management/tracking system that will synchronize with both the PRPB and OGPe systems, to centralize this information and to allow for cross reference, notification, and identification of problems.

The permitting and inspection process often requires significant legal intervention on behalf of the GPR Entity. Given the expected number of permit applications and the corresponding abundance of violations expected to occur during the rebuilding process following Hurricanes Irma and Maria, it is anticipated that significant legal activities will be required, and therefore significant legal staff needed.

Finally, this Project will have a decreased federal share over time, as the income generated by these activities will be used to maintain staff and resources for a selfsustaining program, to ensure that the Government of Puerto Rico maintains compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations and Codes, resulting in a more resilient and protected island.

IV. Scope of Work and Services

A. Project Implementation and PMO Scope of Implementation

The aggressive implementation schedule, combined with the high degree of complexity of the code enforcement responsibilities of both PRPB and OGPe, requires a highly effective Program Management Office (the "PMO") function that can support implementation activities. The Project Manager will be required to set up an overarching PMO function under the direction and management of PRPB leadership and assigns project managers to both PRPB and OGPe and coordinates all Project areas.

The primary functions of the PMO will be as follows:

- The PMO will provide robust, efficient, and effective processes to ensure high- quality implementation. This includes:
 - Strategic Planning
 - Project Planning / Sequencing /Schedule Management
 - Performance Management
 - Risk Management
 - Issue Management
 - Contract Management
 - Cost and Budget Control
 - Management
 - Knowledge and Document Management
 - Quality Assurance
 - Scope Management
- The PMO will build and manage operational performance metrics and service level agreements, when applicable.
- The PMO will manage communication specific to scope implementation.
- The PMO will provide risk analysis for key decisions.
- The PMO may provide input and analysis of federal and state policies.
- The PMO will provide tools to support governance of policy decisions.
- The PMO will work with PRPB to identify critical stakeholders and build communication plans that leverage multiple channels.
- The PMO will provide support to ensure consistent messaging.
- B. PMO Capability and Objectives

To support the implementation of the Project, the PMO will be critical in delivering the following capabilities and corresponding objectives. Many of these objectives will be led, facilitated, or supported by the PMO under the direction and management of PRPB leadership.

Table 2 - PMO Capability and Objectives

CAPABILITY	PMO Role	R elated Objectives
Program Structure	Facilitate and Lead	 Working with PRPB, a program model is structured to ensure a culture of high-quality delivery, accountability, collaboration, and transparency.
Strategic (Program) Planning	Facilitate and Lead	 Development of a clear and realistic Implementation Roadmap for Project operations. Prioritization and sequencing of project tasks; this includes ensuring budgets, resource plans, and contracts align to the Implementation Roadmap.
Schedule Management	Lead	 Projects are setup for success and are effectively planned with realistic timelines, dependencies, deliverables, and staffing.
Performance Management	Lead	 Metrics and service level agreements are established and managed which ensure projects are delivered on time and within budget. Performance issues are effectively identified and resolved.
Risk Management	Lead	 A highly effective method for identifying and mitigating operational, technical, and financial risks is in place and provides a basis for critical leadership decisions.
Communication	Support	 Communication support to result in highly informed stakeholders across the island.
Organizational Change Management	Facilitate	 Organizational planning successful in building a qualified and scalable infrastructure to support the Program.
Contract Management	Lead	 Processes and policies are in place to define requirements and select qualified contractors and vendors to provide services for the Project. Contract standards and processes are in place to ensure high performance from contractors and vendors. Roles and responsibilities for contractual management are clearly defined.
Issue Management	Lead	 Conflicts and issues are actively identified and tracked through to resolution. Automated workflow for issue identification and tracking are operational.
Cost and Budget Control Management	Lead	 Ensuring budgetary controls are compliant with state and federal guidelines and all financial reporting processes are operational.
Knowledge and Document Management	Lead	 A secure but accessible library of key documents, contracts, deliverables, and other documentation is operational for the Project for both internal and external usage.
Quality Assurance	Support	 Clear quality assurance processes are defined and operational for business and technical operations.
Scope Management	Lead	 Processes for managing project-level scope of work are operational.

C. Functional Role of the PMO

As described above, PRPB is seeking the right partnership model in developing the Project. This partnership should be highly productive, evolve as needed, and challenge the organization to improve quality of the operation. As outlined in Section V.B, this requires a contractor with broad depth and expertise across multiple disciplines. This section provides more details across these disciplines and functions and outlines specifically what is expected from the PMO contractor.

1. PMO Governance Structure

Given the aggressive implementation schedule, a highly complex PMO with governance processes will likely not be optimal. How the PMO interacts with PRPB and OGPe staff and contractors – including their reporting structure and roles is one of the first critical activities of the PMO. The Contractor will be responsible for developing an approach to implement this PMO. The Contractor must outline this approach in their proposal.

2. Strategic Planning / Implementation-Sequencing Roadmap

One of the first tasks for the Contractor will be updating the Implementation-Sequencing Roadmap which will identify critical projects/tasks and the associated duration for each. This Roadmap will also identify dependencies, ownership for each project/task, and expected outcomes for each. The Contractor will be responsible for facilitating the PRPB staff in the development of this Implementation-Sequencing Roadmap and as well as maintaining updated versions.

3. Operational Support

The following table outlines traditional PMO functions that the Contractor must provide for this engagement.

FUNCTION	PMO RESPONSIBILITY	
Program Structure	 The PMO will build and/or review (as necessary) operational project plans and corresponding schedules. 	
	• The Contractor will be responsible for methods that review and ensure plans are realistic for implementation.	

Table 3 - PMO Functions and Responsibilities

FUNCTION	PMO RESPONSIBILITY
	 This includes managing version controls of plans, establishing schedule metrics, identifying dependencies, and ensuring contracts are aligned to the schedule. The PMO will work with contractors and staff to ensure plans are current and managed effectively. The PMO will manage resources and staff; including maintaining a master calendar of key events. The PMO will provide software tools for managing schedules and plans.
Performance Management	 The PMO will work with PRPB leadership to establish operational metrics for performance of the Project. While activities may be delivered by other contractors and staff, the PMO will be charged with evaluating and measuring performance and ensuring actions are taken to mitigate poor performance. The PMO will ensure contracts include proper service level agreements and other performance-based metrics to maximize contractor performance.
Risk Management	 The PMO will be responsible for establishing a risk management process. The PMO will be responsible for cataloging key risks for the program; including development of mitigation strategies for each risk. The PMO will perform risk analysis functions as necessary to support critical operational decision making. The PMO will provide necessary tools (software) to manage risk as appropriate.
Communication	 The PMO will work with PRPB staff to build a communication plan that catalogs stakeholders and outlines effective communication mechanisms and channels for communication. The PMO will provide messaging services and support the development of presentations and other material as needed by PRPB staff. The PMO will provide communication tools to conduct surveys, virtual meetings, and conference calls as necessary. The PMO will facilitate meetings as necessary, including producing agendas and meeting minutes. The PMO will produce a status reporting mechanism for PRPB leadership.
Issues Management	 The PMO will be responsible for establishing an issue management process. The PMO will be responsible for cataloging key issues for the Project; including development of mitigation strategies for each risk. The PMO will ensure risks are properly managed and resolved. The PMO will perform analysis functions as necessary to support critical operational decision making and/or issue resolution. The PMO will provide necessary tools (software) to manage issues as appropriate.
Cost and Budget Control Management	 While PRPB will be responsible for financial controls and budgets, the PMO will support this function by tracking project actual data to planned expenditures.

FUNCTION	PMO RESPONSIBILITY	
	 The PMO will help plan budgets for contracted expenditures and will assist in producing budgets for project tasks. The PMO will ensure weekly tracking of project expenses and will report them to PRPB leadership and other stakeholders as instructed. 	
Knowledge and Document Management	 The PMO will establish a process for archiving and ensuring version control for all knowledge artifacts. The PMO will be responsible for all managing enterprise documents by providing an on-line (secure, cloud based repository). 	
Scope Management	 The PMO will ensure robust change management processes for project scope. This includes managing scope within contracted services. The PMO will establish a formal change control board capacity for the PRPB to facilitate the review and approval of changes that impact timelines, budget, or functionality of the Project. 	

D. Contract Management

A critical and vital role for the PMO will be to provide contractual management support. In addition to creating RFPs and other requests for contracted services, the PMO will:

- Develop effective evaluation and selection processes
- Develop baseline operational contracts for all contracted services
- Coordinate evaluation and selection processes
- Implement robust contracted service level agreements
- Ensure federal/state compliance with contracts
- Develop processes for reviewing contractor performance

There is a strict requirement that the PMO must be completely neutral and agnostic with other software, hardware, and professional services vendors.

E. Quality Assurance

The PMO will be responsible for deliverable quality assurance. This includes providing editorial and content quality assurance services on the following deliverables:

- Grant amendments
- Functional and technical specifications
- RFPs
- Contracts
- Status reports

- Communication and Outreach Materials
- Internal Deliverables
- Board Presentations

Other deliverables and artifacts may require review – the PMO must a process that improves overall quality of deliverables and materials.

In addition, the PMO will be responsible for providing document version controls and providing an infrastructure for managing documents and deliverables.

- F. General Management Responsibilities for Project Managers Assigned to Entities
 - 1. Overall project management, including facilitating all phases of the project concurrently.
 - 2. Cost-estimating individual tasks and advising PRPB on matters pertaining to the overall project budget.
 - 3. Attend meetings on behalf of the PRPB as their authorized representative, if so requested.
 - 4. Arranging for routine status/action plan meetings, establishing priorities, and updates at meetings.
 - 5. Aid the PRPB about project implementation efforts and compliance with applicable Local, Commonwealth, and Federal Laws, Regulations, Executive Orders, and FEMA requirements.
 - 6. Provide knowledge, experience, technical assistance, and oversight in the planning, administration, implementation, and execution of the project.
 - 7. Develop comprehensive administrative guidelines for the management of the project. Identification of long-lead items to facilitate the earliest feasible date for project completion.
 - 8. Project schedule development (with short, medium and long-term strategies) including adjustments based on the progress of work and specific recommendations for prioritizing and accelerating critical

path items.

- 9. Monitor and evaluate progress of project activities in accordance with approved SOW and budget, Federal and State administrative requirements.
- 10. Assisting PRPB in procuring professional services and technology identified in the project (including the preparation of procurement documents, including review of SOWs and specifications.)
- 11. Managing third-party services contracted entered by PRPB under the project.
- 12. Assistance in management of PRPB staff, contractors and consultants in administration and execution of the project provide scheduling and coordination of all procured services.
- 13. Preparing reports for upper management.
- 14. Meeting with Entities' upper management for briefing and clarify specific requirements of Entities' share of the Grant.

G. General Grant Management Responsibilities

- 1. Cost reports and other pertinent report preparation, review, and content recommendations (e.g., monthly progress reports, quarterly reporting, reimbursement request, request for advance, closeout).
- 2. Collecting and organizing contracts, reports, logs, and other supporting documentation necessary for reporting required by COR3 and FEMA.
- 3. Establishing quality assurance/quality control reviews and assessments associated with the payments process to ensure that they comply with federal and state regulations and conform to best practices.
- 4. Coordinate and manage deliverables with COR3 and FEMA.
- 5. Establishing programmatic document control, establishing a file

retention system and data management processes to ensure project records are complete and ready for audit.

- 6. Generate amendments requesting changes as agreed through resolution, discussion, or appeals.
- 7. Other tasks and matters reasonably related.

V. Notice to Proceed

Following the date of execution of the Contract, the PRPB will issue a notice to proceed (a "NTP") with one or more phases of the Services to be provided thereunder. During the term of the Contract, the PRPB may issue additional partial NTPs with the remaining phases of the Services. The PRPB also may determine, at its sole discretion, to limit the Services. The PRPB may exercise this right not to authorize the continuation of any of the Services at any time during the term of the Contract by not issuing to the Project Manager a NTP for said portion of the Services.

VI. Prohibited Communications

No Proponent, principal member of the Proponent, contractors or proposed subcontractors, nor any agent, consultant, attorney or anyone acting on behalf of the Proponent or any of its principal members or proposed subcontractors, shall communicate with the PRPB, or any other of the PRPB's consultants working on the Project regarding this RFP and any Proposal to be filed by any Proponent, including its own Proposal, or undertake any other communication related to this RFP up to the time of the award of a Contract, except as provided in Section 5.3, above or in meetings officially scheduled by the PRPB. Any violation of the restriction imposed by this section regarding communications may constitute grounds for rejection of a Proposal at any time.

VII. Most Advantageous Proposal

The PRPB intends to select as the successful Proponent, the responsible Proponent whose Proposal is determined to be most advantageous to the PRPB and the Project, with price and other factors considered.

This RFP includes sufficient information to enable the Proponents to prepare and submit Proposals and all required documents for consideration and evaluation by the PRPB. The Proposals must be submitted in accordance with this RFP, including all exhibits and addenda hereto, which shall be deemed to be an integrated set of Proposal requirements.

VIII. Proposal Submittal Requirements

A. How to Submit

All proposals must be submitted electronically to the contact identified in Section 2. No proposals will be accepted by any other means. Proposals submitted through any other means will be marked non-responsive. Proposals must be marked clearly with the proposal number, proposal name, and closing date and time in the submission email. Unidentifiable proposals will be marked non-responsive.

B. Required Contents

All items in this RFP are considered essential parts of the proposal package. Submittals must include the package in its entirety, and all forms must be signed in the appropriate places by an authorized representative of the proposer. Proposals not including a complete, signed package will be considered non-responsive.

C. Submittal Deadline

The deadline for submittal of proposals is 1200pm AST on February 12, 2019. It is the proposer's responsibility to have all proposal documents correctly submitted by the submittal deadline. No extensions will be granted, and no late proposals will be accepted. Any proposal received after *1200 AST* on *February 12, 2019* will be considered non-responsive.

Proposers are encouraged to submit their proposals as soon as complete. The time and date of receipt as recorded by the email received shall be the official time of receipt. Neither PRPB is responsible for late submission regardless of the reason. Late proposals will not be considered under any circumstances.

D. Rejections, Alterations, or Withdrawals of Proposal Documents

Issuance of this RFP does not constitute a commitment by PRPB to award a contract. PRPB may accept or reject, in whole or in part, any or all proposals submitted and/or to cancel this solicitation and reissue this RFP or another version of it, if it deems doing so is in the best interest of Puerto Rico.

Any submitted proposal may be withdrawn, or a revised proposal submitted prior to the submittal deadline. Notice of withdrawal must be submitted in writing to the contact identified in Section 2. Proposal documents may not be altered, amended, or withdrawn by the proposer after the submittal deadline.

E. Validity of Proposal

Once the submittal deadline has passed, any proposal document shall constitute an irrevocable proposal to provide the services set forth in the Scope of Services at the price(s) shown in the proposal document. Such proposal shall be irrevocable until the earlier of the expiration of 90 days from the submittal deadline, or until a contract has been awarded by PRPB.

IX. Evaluation and Selection

A. General

The PRPB will appoint a qualified Evaluation Committee to evaluate the Proposals submitted by Proponents (the "Evaluation Committee"). The Evaluation Committee will evaluate and rank the Proposals received pursuant to this RFP in accordance with the criteria set forth below.

Following review of all Proposals received, the Evaluation Committee may request individual interviews with Proponents determined to be in the competitive range. The competitive range will include those Proponents who, after evaluation and scoring of their Proposals, appear to have the greatest potential to satisfy the terms and conditions of the RFP. The purpose of these interviews will be for the Evaluation Committee to meet the staff of the Proponent who would be assigned to this Project, clarify their Proposal, and negotiate fees.

Time is of the essence in conducting the proposal evaluations. The Evaluation Committee will score each proposal and rank them in descending order. If there is no need to conduct discussions or negotiations with the top ranked Proposer, the PRPB may award a contract without discussions. If there is a need to conduct discussions or negotiations, the Evaluation Committee will determine which Proposers, in the competitive range, will participate. Proposers may be afforded the opportunity to submit a best and final offer (price).

B. Completeness

A Proposal must be complete or will be rejected. If the Proposal is incomplete or otherwise fails to conform to the requirements of the RFP, or if the variance from

the requirements is so significant as to render the Proposal non-responsive, the Proposal will be rejected as non- responsive. All Proposals deemed complete and meeting the Proposal submission requirements will be evaluated.

C. Evaluation Criteria

Each responsive Proposal meeting all submission requirements will be independently evaluated by the Evaluation Committee, which will assign a score for each evaluation criteria up to the maximum points.

Table 4 – Evaluation Criteria's

CRITERIA	MAXIMUMS POINTS
Qualifications and Experience	
Respondents must demonstrate that they have been in continuous operations for at least 5 years prior to the date of the proposal submitted. Qualifications should showcase:	
 Ability to facilitate and execute a strategic roadmap for a large-scale system implementation. Ability to implement and manage effective contract management capabilities through the lifecycle (evaluation, selection, and maintenance). Ability to implement an agile governance model that provides efficient yet highly effective controls. Experience must include examples of the following: 	
 Performance Management Risk Management Issue Management Cost and Budget Control Management Scope Management 	30 points
Consideration will be given to respondents who have combined and demonstrable experience in the areas of: project management of federally funded projects; administration and grant management; federal grants supervision; process and implementation of hazard mitigation grant program eligible projects; and code enforcement including regulations related to land use planning, building and construction codes, and permits. Respondents should demonstrate knowledge and application of all federal laws, regulations, and policies that apply to the FEMA hazard mitigation program.	

Criteria	MAXIMUMS POINTS
Respondents must present at least one qualification in managing a large public-sector project or system implementation.	
Respondents must demonstrate experience working with multiple issues simultaneously. Respondents that demonstrate that they have staff available to begin work immediately will be scored higher than those who need additional time for staffing or whose responses are vague.	
Approach and Methodology	
The approach should outline how key processes and functions, outlined in Section V.C should be implemented (and potentially customized) for best results. This includes implementation of potential tools to support these key processes.	
Respondents must outline a clear and straightforward approach to staffing and working with, or have specific arrangements with sub- contractors to deliver, the scope of work described herein.	20 points
Respondents should ensure that their proposals contain sufficient information for the PRPB to make its determination by presenting credible evidence of the above to perform the services required.	20 points
Respondents shall identify key goals and objectives and methods for achieving high standards for delivery of services, in expectation of meeting or exceeding these goals. Respondents shall explain how they will be organized to effectively work simultaneously on multiple plan updates and must clearly identify both the engagement manager and key work stream leaders.	
Price Proposal	
Proposals will be evaluated on the price proposal. Respondents that clearly identify a plan for reducing project costs over the life of the project as key milestones are reached and the volume of activities reach natural break points, and that identify a clear plan for cost saving measures and/or efficiencies will receive the most points. Respondents shall clearly align position titles, job descriptions, and rates in their proposal.	20 points
Commitment to Complying with all Applicable Federal and Puerto Rico Regulations	20 points

Criteria	MAXIMUMS POINTS
Respondents must demonstrate a commitment to complying with all applicable federal and Puerto Rico regulations. Adherence to strong ethical and integrity practices and an unequivocal commitment to solid administrative practices are essential to PRPB. A thorough understanding federal and Puerto Rico requirements is essential to project success.	
Integration of Local Parties Respondents are encouraged to seek a strategic integration of local parties. PRPB has the responsibility to encourage respondents to engage local parties as team members and key individuals. The scope of services pertains to numerous federal regulations, and the deliverables will benefit the whole of Puerto Rico. This requires clear understanding of local regulations, policy frameworks, and the infrastructure and fiscal challenges of the Island. Local parties can significantly complement the services of mainland-based firms and enhance the effectiveness of respondents in the implementation and deployment of the required services.	10 points
Total	100 points

D. Finalist Interview

PRPB may select a competitive range of qualified offerors based on the initial evaluation points and to invite those qualified respondents to a finalist interview with the Evaluation Committee. If PRPB elects to conduct finalist interviews, each qualified respondent will be required to give a strictly timed 40-minute presentation. This presentation must highlight expertise and prior project work for similar organizations. This presentation shall also clearly explain the respondent's approach to the project and team composition. The Evaluation Committee may revise the score of a qualified respondent's proposal based on the presentation. Respondents are responsible for all costs or expenses incurred to attend such an interview and develop any materials.

E. Selection

Following the completion of the evaluation process, the Evaluation Committee will recommend to the PRPB the contractor(s) who has/have the highest scores on the evaluation criteria. The PRPB will review the recommendation to ensure its compliance with the RFP process and criteria before concurring with the Evaluation

Committee's recommendation.

F. Ambiguity

Any ambiguity in the proposal because of omission, error, lack of clarity, or noncompliance by the proposer with specification, instructions, and all conditions shall be construed in the favor of PRPB.

G. Unit Prices and Extensions

If unit prices and their extensions do not coincide, PRPB may accept the price most beneficial to PRPB. The Proponent will be bound thereby.

H. Additional Information

PRPB may request any other information necessary to determine the Proponent's ability to meet the minimum standards required by this RFP.

I. Partial Contract Award

PRPB reserves the right to award one (1) contract for some of all of the requirements proposed or award multiple contracts for various portions of the requirements to different Proponents based on the unit priced proposed in response to this RFP, or to reject any and all proposals and re-solicit for proposals, as deemed to be in the best interest of PRPB and the Government of Puerto Rico.

J. No Commitment

This RFP does not commit the PRPB to award any costs or pay any costs or to award any contract, or to pay any costs associated with or incurred in the preparation of a Proposal to respond to this RFP, or to procure or contract for services or supplies.

K. Pre-award Protest Procedures

Any actual or prospective Proponent who is allegedly involved with this solicitation or award of a Contract based on its Proposal may submit a protest to the RFP specifications or to the exclusion from the competitive range (a "Protest"), if the PRPB decides to determine one. If a competitive range is used, the excluded proponents will be notified of their exclusion with a brief explanation of the grounds for the decision. The protest must be submitted in writing to the contact identified in Section II within three (3) working days after such aggrieved person knows of or should have known of the facts giving rise thereto. If the protest is not resolved by agreement, PRPB will promptly issue a decision in writing to the protesting party.

- 1. All Protests lodged by potential or actual contractors or Proponents must be made in writing and contain the following information:
 - a. Name, address, and telephone number of the protestor.
 - b. Identification of the solicitation or contract number and title.
 - c. A detailed statement of the Protest's legal and factual grounds, including copies of relevant documents.
 - d. Identification of the issue(s) to be resolved and a statement of what relief is requested
 - e. Arguments and authorities in support of the Protest
 - f. A statement that copies of the Protest have been mailed or delivered to all interested parties in the RFP process. In the case of RFPs, the contact identified in Section II shall ask the protestor to mail or deliver the protest to interested parties.
- 2. The contact identified in Section II has the authority to render the final determination regarding the protest. Any determination rendered by the contact identified in Section 2 shall be final.

Post award reconsideration and judicial review are governed by PR Act No. 38 of 2017 known as the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act of the Government of Puerto Rico, 3 L.P.R.A. sec. 9601, *et seq*.

L. Single Proposal Response

If only one Proposal is received in response to this RFP, a detailed cost proposal may be requested of the single Proponent. A cost/price analysis and evaluation and/or audit will be performed of the cost Proposal to determine if the price is fair and reasonable, in accordance with 2 CFR, §200.323.

M. Other Considerations

In general, the PRPB also may consider, without limitation, any of the following issues when determining whether a Proponent is qualified to undertake the Project:

- 1. Whether the Proposal complies with the PRPB 's objectives and the RFP;
- 2. The Proponent's reputation and commercial integrity, including its record of compliance with previous public and private clients;
- 3. Any other applicable condition of the RFP or Applicable Law and Regulations.

X. Small and Minority-Owned Businesses, Women's Business

A. Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Firms

In accordance with 2 CFR, §200.321, it is the policy of the Government of Puerto Rico and PRPB to stimulate growth of local minority and women-owned business enterprises (M/WBE) by encouraging their participation in all phases of its contract and procurement activities and by affording them the opportunity to complete the all PRPB contracts. The purpose and objectives of this article are to:

- 1. Increase the capacity of local M/WBE firms to provide products and services.
- 2. Increase the opportunities for local M/WBE firms to expand their business with PRPB and other public and private sector business entities.

Provided, however nothing herein shall require PRPB to award contracts for services or procurements to a M/WBE which is not also the most responsive and responsible Proponent and otherwise qualified.

XI. Respondent Requirements

A. Legal Entities

All persons may participate in this RFP; however, offerors that are corporations, partnerships, or any other legal entity, US mainland or Puerto Rico based, shall be properly registered or capable to be registered to do business in Puerto Rico at the

time of the submission of their proposal, and shall comply with all applicable Puerto Rico and federal laws and/or requirements.

B. Required Qualifications

Respondents to the RFP shall provide information in their proposals that demonstrates the following qualifications:

- 1. Respondent has adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or the ability to obtain them; financial statements for the previous 2 years or equivalent financial records must be included in the respondent's proposal. Respondents must also include documentation verifying they are not debarred or suspended from doing work with either the federal government or the Government of Puerto Rico.
- 2. Respondent can comply with an accelerated delivery and performance schedule.
- 3. Respondent has a satisfactory record of performance.
- 4. Respondent has a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics.
- 5. Respondent has the necessary organizational, experience, accounting and operational controls, and technical skills to deliver the scope of services.
- 6. Neither the respondent nor any person or entity associated who is partnering with the respondent has been the subject of any adverse findings that would prevent PRPB from selecting the respondent. Such adverse findings include but are not limited to the following:
 - a. Negative findings from a federal Inspector General or from the US Government
 - b. Accountability Office (GAO), or from an Inspector General in another state;
 - c. Pending or unresolved legal action from the US Attorney General or from an
 - d. Attorney General in Puerto Rico or another state;
 - e. Pending litigation with the Government of Puerto Rico, or any other state;

- f. Arson conviction or pending case;
- g. Harassment conviction or pending case;
- h. Puerto Rico, federal, or private mortgage in arrears, default, or foreclosure proceedings;
- i. In rem foreclosure;
- j. Sales tax lien or substantial tax arrears;
- k. Fair Housing violations or current litigation;
- 1. Defaults under any federal or Puerto Rico sponsored program;
- m. A record of substantial building code violations or litigation against properties owned and/or managed by respondent or by any entity or individual that compromises the respondent;
- n. Past or pending voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy proceedings; or
- o. Conviction for fraud, bribery, or grand larceny or any felony listed in the PR Anticorruption Code of 2017.

XII. Conflicts of Interest

By the submission of a Proposal, the Proponent represents and warrants, for itself and each of its Principal Members (each, individually, a "Proponent Representative"), that:

- 1. No Proponent Representative, nor any of its partners, officers or employees is or has been an employee or assembly member of the PRPB within two (2) years prior to the Proposal Due Date.
- 2. No officer, employee, assembly member of the PRPB nor any member of their respective family units, has any direct or indirect economic interest in this Project or any Contract therefor and that no officer, employee, advisor or consultant of the PRPB nor any member of their respective family units has any interest or participation in the economic benefits or earnings related to this Project.

- 3. No Proponent Representative, nor any of their partners, officers, employees, directors, associates, advisors or consultants nor any member of their respective family units has any conflict of interest related to the provisions and obligations arising from this Project.
- 4. No Proponent Representative, nor any of its partners, officers, employees or directors has been convicted of or has pled guilty to any crime involving fraud, or misuse or misappropriation of public funds.
- 5. No Proponent Representative currently employs, or intends to employ, a public official or any member of his or her immediate family.
- 6. No Proponent Representative has achieved or may achieve an unfair competitive advantage in the procurement of the Project due to other activities or relationships with the PRPB or other persons or entities.
- 7. By the submission of its Proposal, for itself and its respective employees, officers, board members and agents, that its participation in the RFP process and, if selected, its engagement by the PRPB to perform the obligations under a Contract would not result in violation of the applicable provisions of the Government Ethics Law or in either a personal or an organizational conflict of interest.

Any contract awarded under this RFP will preclude the selected respondent from representing before the PRPB any bidder other than those bidders or grantees who may be assigned under this contract during the period the contract is in effect.

Respondents are required to detail any other current or former advisory contracts the firm has/had with any entity of the GPR, or which bear any direct or indirect relation to the activities of the GPR. Further, provide a description of any recent historical or ongoing legal proceedings, interviews, or investigations being conducted by any US law Enforcement agencies involving the respondent's firm or team that are related to transactions executed in or on behalf of the Government of Puerto Rico, state agencies, and/or public corporations. In addition, provide a brief description of any work performed for any creditors or guarantors of the Government of Puerto Rico, a state agency, and/or a public corporation debt about their positions in Puerto Rico debt obligations. Indicate whether this activity is ongoing, and if not, when the prior assignment concluded. A person or business, and their agents, who seek to contract or enter into an agreement with PRPB or the Government of Puerto Rico are required to file a conflict of interest questionnaire which is found in the Appendix. This questionnaire complies with 2 CFR, §200.112. This form must be submitted with the proposal. If no conflict exists, the Proposer must mark the

form Not Applicable or NA.

At some point in the selection process, the PRPB may request information on any perceived conflict of interest. Also, the PRPB may in the future request a list of direct or indirect relationships the firm or its professionals must Board Members or executives of state agencies or public corporations. In the event of real of apparent conflicts of interest, GSA reserves the right, in the Government's best interest and at its sole discretion, to reject a proposal outright or to impose additional conditions upon respondents. GSA reserves the right to cancel any contract awarded pursuant to this RFP with 30 days of notice if an actual conflict of interest, or the appearance of such conflict, is not cured to GSA's satisfaction.

All existing consultants, contractors, and subcontractors of the P3 Authority and the COR3 are precluded from responding to the RFPs. P3 Authority and COR3 consider that it is important to avoid any perceived and/or real unfair advantages or conflicts.

If any question of real or apparent conflict of interest should arise, the determination of the PRPB as to such question shall be final and binding. The PRPB reserves the right, in the event it determines that a conflict of interest would arise, to reject all or any portion of any Proposal based on such conflict of interest.

XIII. Subcontractors

PRPB shall have a single prime contractor as the result of any contract negotiation. That prime contractor shall be responsible for all deliverables specified in this RFP and the selected proposal. This general requirement notwithstanding, respondents may enter into subcontractor arrangements. However, the proposal must acknowledge the respondent's responsibility for the entire scope of services.

If the respondent intends to subcontract for portions of the work, the respondent should identify any subcontractor relationship(s) and include specific designations of the tasks to be performed by the subcontractor(s). Information required of the respondent to the RFP shall also be required of each subcontractor. The prime contractor shall be the single point of contact for all subcontract work. The prime contractor shall pay the subcontractor(s); PRPB shall not be responsible for payment of any subcontractor Unless provided for in the contract with PRPB, the prime contractor shall not contract with any other party for any services herein contracted without the express prior written approval of PRPB.

XIV. Proposal Format

The respondent's proposal shall be formatted according to this section. Failure to

follow this format will result in the proposal being deemed non-responsive.

A. Cover Letter and Table of Contents (2 pages)

Provide a cover letter that includes certification that the information submitted, and the contents of the Proposal are true and accurate, and that the person signing the cover letter is authorized to submit the proposal on behalf of the Proponent. Clearly identify the designated contact person for the engagement. Provide a table of contents that clearly identifies the location of all material within the Proposal by section and page number.

B. Experience and Capacity (8-12 pages)

Provide a summary of the types of services the Proponent offers that relate to this RFP. Provide specific details of previous experience with federally funded projects and programs. Identify engagement and/or staff experience with entities comparable to PRPB for which the Proponent provides or has provided similar services within the previous 5 years. Proponent must demonstrate experience in the areas of project management of federally funded projects; administration and grant management; federal grants supervision; process and implementation of hazard mitigation grant program eligible projects; and code enforcement including regulations related to land use planning, building and construction codes, and permits for which the Proponent has provided services like those described in this RFP. Detail at least 2 similar engagements and/or experiences with private and/or public-sector clients that demonstrate that the Proponent can provide the requested services to a high standard of quality. Each example must include:

- 1. Name of client organization;
- 2. Description of the engagement or experience and objectives of the project, including beginning and ending dates;
- 3. Examples of recommendations offered to the client and the results of the implementation of those recommendations;
- 4. Information regarding the project that would demonstrate successful experiences by the client, because of the recommendations provided by the respondent. This may include performance metrics and improvements;
- 5. If the example involves a private-sector client, describe how the experience

could be applied to the public sector.

- 6. Description of the federal funding programs managed during the engagement;
- 7. Description of key programs or projects advanced as part of the engagement, if any.

PRPB may seek information from references regarding subjects that include, but are not limited to, the quality of the service(s) provided, the anticipated ability of the respondent to perform the services required by this RFP, and the responsiveness of the respondent to the client during the engagement. Provide at least 3 references for the respondent and 2 each for any partners or sub- contractors. Complete the reference information form included in the Appendix (does not count towards page limit). PRPB's inability to contact a reference will not be viewed favorably; respondents are therefore encouraged to use current references.

Provide a summary of the respondent's technical expertise that describes the respondent's unique capabilities. This narrative should highlight the respondent's ability to provide the requested services. Provide biographical summaries for key individuals and their proposed roles. (Complete resumes may be attached to the proposal and will not count towards the page limit.)

In addition, identify any sub-contractors and local parties incorporated into the team and clearly explain their expertise, expected role, and value to the engagement. Specify the primary contact person for the Proponent (name, title, location, telephone number, and email address), and the anticipated availability of the respondent's primary contact person for the anticipated life cycle of the project.

C. Approach and Methodology (4-8 pages)

Explain how the respondent will achieve the goals, tasks, and deliverables described in the Scope of Work section of this RFP. Specifically address how the respondent will effectively assist the PRPB with the Scope of Work, and how the respondent intends to cohesively deliver all services in an organized and documented manner. Indicate why the proposed approach is appropriate and well suited for Puerto Rico and federal requirements associated with code Enforcement planning.

Provide examples of how the proposed approach has achieved success in specific, relevant projects for public or private sector organizations similar in size and complexity, considering the current situation of Puerto Rico. Each example must

contain enough information for the Evaluation Committee to ascertain the success of the projects accomplished by the respondent. This section must include an acknowledgment that, if selected, the respondent can respond with sufficient key and line staff and the proposed key individuals and must stipulate the time required for project initiation.

Identify existing staff that will be involved in the project, including each staff member's proposed role in the project's organization, their relevant qualifications, and the allocation of their time to this engagement. Clearly identify those team members that reside in Puerto Rico and will serve as local contacts for the Project.

D. Price Proposal

An hourly rate schedule for the delivery of services, by category (project executive, project manager, subject matter expert, project Accountant, closeout specialist, etc.) of the personnel that will be assigned to the PMO. All hourly rates shall include overhead and proposer's profit. The rates provided by the Respondents shall be guaranteed for the performance period of the contract.

The PRPB will not reimburse costs related to office materials, photocopies, scanners, stamps, messengers, fax transmissions, telephone calls or similar costs.

E. Commitment to Compliance with all Applicable Federal and Puerto Rico Regulations (2-4 pages)

Respondents shall explain their adherence and commitment to complying with all applicable federal and Puerto Rico laws and regulations. Indicate what characteristics of the proposed team set them apart in terms of commitment to comply with all applicable laws and requirements. Indicate the specific trainings and expertise that reside within the team that reinforces the commitment to compliance.

F. Local Parties (1-4 pages)

PRPB and the Government of Puerto Rico value fostering the participation of local parties in the provision of professional services and local expertise. Explain how local parties will add value to the team and their expected role(s). Identify key personnel from local parties and provide an indication of the expected level of involvement in day-to-day activities, interaction with communities and municipalities, and interface with PRPB.

G. Required Forms (Appendix)

All forms found in the Appendix to this RFP must be completed (or marked NA) and submitted as part of the respondent's proposal. No portion of the forms contained in the Appendix shall count towards the page limit of the proposal.

H. Additional Information

1. Cost of Preparing Proposals

All costs associated with preparing a response to the RFP are the sole responsibility of the respondent. PRPB shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the proposers prior to issuance of or entering into a contract. Costs associated with developing the proposal, preparing for an oral presentation or interview, and any other expenses incurred by the respondent to the RFP are entirely the responsibility of the respondent and shall not be reimbursed in any manner by PRPB.

2. Payment Terms and Method of Payment

Compensation for services performed under the contract shall not exceed the maximum compensation authorized by the PRPB therein. PRPB agrees to pay the contractor the contract compensation for the services delivered during the term of the contract.

Payment of compensation shall be based on actual services performed during the term of the contract. The PRPB shall not be obligated to pay for any services not performed in compliance with the contract and applicable laws and regulations. In the event of early termination of the contract, the PRPB shall only be obligated to pay the compensation due up to the date of termination. In no event shall the PRPB be liable for any costs incurred or services delivered after the effective date of termination as provided herein.

3. Payment Terms

If PRPB finds the submitted invoice acceptable, then the invoice will be approved and processed for payment promptly after submission. PRPB reserves the right to review and validate the correctness of invoices and perform audits as it sees fit.

4. Method of Payment

The selected respondent shall submit invoices monthly for the agreed fees. Invoices must be detailed, specific, and itemized accompanied by a description of the services provided as previously approved by PRPB. In addition, each invoice must certify that no public servant of the contracting entity is a party or has interest on the profits or benefits produced from the contract, regarding the invoice, and if it does have interest in some part on the profits or benefits of the contract it must specific that a waiver has been mediated. PRPB shall request of the selected proponent all necessary information, related to the invoiced expenses, to verify them, before approving the release of payment. The method of payment will be established in the contract.

The selected proponent will deliver original invoices to the PRPB or its authorized representative. Such invoice must be properly completed and certified by the selected proponent. PRPB will work promptly upon receipt to duly certify the invoice in accordance with the applicable Puerto Rico accounting and treasury laws and regulations.

I. Federal Grant Requirements

This contract may be funded wholly or in part with federal grant funds. Therefore, this contract is governed by certain federal terms and conditions for federal grants. The Appendix to this RFP contains a listing of these required terms and conditions that must be acknowledge by the respondent as part of their proposal. Any funds disallowed by any federal grantor shall be disallowed from fee or compensation to the selected respondent.

In addition, this RFP will be conducted in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, which clearly outlines methods of procurement to be followed by non-federal entities.

J. Proprietary Data and Confidentiality

The PRPB shall have no obligation to treat any information submitted in connection with a Proposal as proprietary or confidential unless (i) the Proponent clearly so identifies such information in its Proposal as proprietary or confidential, and (ii) the PRPB determines that the information is proprietary or a trade secret and legitimately requires such treatment or that it must otherwise be protected from publication according to law. The PRPB's obligations with respect to protection and disclosure of such information shall always be subject to Applicable Law. If the Proponent desires to identify any information in its Proposal as proprietary or confidential, it shall limit such designation to only those portions of the Proposal that actually constitute proprietary information, trade secrets, or other confidential matters or data. Identification of the entire Proposal or entire sections of the Proposal or other overly broad designations as confidential or proprietary are strongly discouraged. The PRPB will consider in its evaluation any attempt by the Proponent to designate any such material as proprietary or confidential or to otherwise include overly-broad designations of portions of its Proposal.

The PRPB shall have the right to use all portions of the Proposal, other than those portions identified and marked as confidential or proprietary, as it considers necessary or desirable in connection with the Project; and, by the submission of the Proposal, the Proponent thereby grants to the PRPB an unrestricted license to use such unrestricted portions of the Proposal.

K. Receipt, Handling and Opening of Proposals

Proposals received prior to the Proposal Due Date will be securely kept unopened. The PRPB will not receive any Proposal after the Proposal Due Date, and any Proposal received thereafter shall be returned to the Proponent unopened. No responsibility will be attached to any officer, agent or representative of the PRPB for the premature opening of any Proposal not properly addressed and identified, except within the sound discretion of the PRPB. Proponents are cautioned to allow ample time for transmittal of proposals by mail or otherwise as they will be held solely responsible for the timely delivery of their Proposals. A Proposal transmitted by facsimile or any other electronic means will be determined not to have been received by the Proposal Due Date.

L. Neutrality

The Proponent shall attest to being neutral in software, hardware and other consulting relationships. Specifically, as the PMO will be managing contracts, the Proponent is attesting they are not a reseller of another contractor's services and do currently or have plans to receive financial compensation from other contractors.

XV. Definitions and Acronyms

"Bidder", "Proponent" or "Respondent" means a(n) (i) natural person, (ii) legal person, (iii) joint venture, or (iv) partnership, or (v) consortium of individuals, and/or partnerships, and/or companies or other entities that submit a response to this RFP that is not currently

debarred.

"Code Enforcement" is any sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate the long-term risk to human life and property from a hazard. Code Enforcement activities may be implemented prior to, during, or after an event.

"Contractor" or "Selected Proponent" means a bidder or proponent awarded a contract resulting from this RFP.

"Evaluation Committee" refers to a committee designated by the PRPB upon recommendations of the Chairman, which will evaluate all complete proposals pursuant to the criteria listed in this RFP.

"Federal Agency" means any of the departments of the Executive Branch of the Government of the United States of America, or any department, corporation, agency or instrumentality created, or which may be created, designated or established by the United States of America.

"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency. General Services Administration" or "GSA" means a Public Agency created by Law.

"Government Entity", as such term is defined in the Executive Order, refers to any department, agency, board, commission, body, bureau, office, public corporation or instrumentality of the Executive Branch, whether existing or to be created in the future.

"Hazard" is a natural hazard and is a source of harm or difficulty created by a meteorological, environmental, or geological event.

"Key Individuals" means an individual who will play an important role in the engagement or contract on behalf of a Team Member resulting from this RFP.

"Local Parties" means local subcontractors or professionals (including architects and consulting engineers) and relevant service providers who are based in or have a significant on-going business presence in Puerto Rico.

"OMB" means the Federal Office of Management and Budget.

"Public Interest" means any government action directed to protecting and benefiting citizens at large, whereby essential goods and services are provided for the welfare of the

population.

"Puerto Rico Planning Board" or "PRPB" – means a public agency created by Law #213 of May 12, 1942, as part of the Office of the Governor, presents responsibilities are stated in Act 75 of 1975, as amended.

"RFP" means this Request for Proposals and addenda issued by the PRPB.

"Team Member" means a member of a Respondent. Team Members should be identified in Respondents' submissions and not be changed without the consent of the PRPB.

XVI. Appendix

1. Cover Page

All Proposals submitted to the Puerto Rico Planning Board shall include this page with the		
RFP Number:	2019-0001-RFP-01	
Project Title:	Code Enforcement	
Submittal Deadline:	1200 AST, February 12, 2019	
Submit via email to:		
	Puerto Rico Planning Board	
	Attention: María del C. Gordillo Pérez – Chairwoman	
	rfp@jp.pr.gov	
Propose	· Information:	
Propos		
Milling		
City,		
Federal		
Employe		
Phone	Fax Number:	
E-Mail		
Proposer Authorization		
I,, the undersigned, have the authority to execute this		
Proposal in its entirety as submitted and enter into a contract on behalf of the Proposer.		
Printed Name and Position of Authorized Representative:		
Signature of Authorized Representative:		
Signed this (day) of(month),(year)	

2. Deliverables

The contractor shall outline the types of deliverables and timelines they produce, in performing the services being procured through this RFP. At a minimum, the key deliverables to be provided shall include such items as:

- 1. Comprehensive reports on actions taken and advice given.
- 2. Work papers and analysis providing information about the process used to develop reports.
- 3. White papers on process limitations in existing programs or efficiencies to be gained (if any) after review.
- 3. Discussion of any potential concerns from Federal agencies (i.e. FEMA) or findings, as well as a corrective plan of action.
- 4. Analysis and recommendations with regards to applicant's management.
- 6. Quarterly reports on activities.
- 8. Reporting and updating timelines.
- 9. Project work plans, timeframes, and budget tools.
- 9. Proposed system(s) and template(s) used to capture and report information.

3. Reference Form

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End	
Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations	
and Results:	
Recommendation	
Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds	
Managed:	
Key Programs or Projects	
Advanced During Engagement:	

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End	
Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations	
and Results:	
Recommendation	
Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds	
Managed:	
Key Programs or Projects	
Advanced During Engagement:	

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations and Results:	
Recommendation Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds Managed:	
Key Programs or Projects Advanced During Engagement:	

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End	
Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations	
and Results:	
Recommendation	
Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds	
Managed:	
Koy Programs or Projects	
Key Programs or Projects	
Advanced During Engagement:	

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End	
Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations	
and Results:	
Recommendation	
Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds	
Managed:	
, ,	
Key Programs or Projects	
Advanced During Engagement:	

Client Organization Name:	
Contact Name:	
Contact Title:	
Contact Phone:	
Contact Email:	
Engagement Begin and End	
Dates:	
Description of Engagement or	
Experience:	
Examples of Recommendations	
and Results:	
Recommendation	
Success Demonstration:	
Description of Federal Funds	
Managed:	
Key Programs or Projects	
Advanced During Engagement:	

4. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

Persons who desire to enter into contracts with the PRPB, must comply with the provisions of the Puerto Rico Government Ethics Act of 2011 (Law 1 of January 3, 2012) and the Code Anti-Corruption, Law 2 of 4th of January of 2018, provisions of Act No. 84 of June 18, 2002, also known as the Code of Ethics for Contractors, Suppliers, and Economic Incentive Beneficiaries of the Executive Branch Agencies of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the "Code of Ethics").

Please respond to the following questions to the best of your knowledge.

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

- 1. Please list any proposed business dealings between the Government of Puerto Rico and you, your family members, and/or entities. Describe each such relationship listed and the actual and potential financial benefits as you can best estimate them.
- 2. Are you aware of any other relationships, arrangements, transactions, or matters which could create a conflict of interest or the appearance of conflict? If so, please describe.
- 3. Please list all business dealings that you, your family members, and/or entities have had with the Government of Puerto Rico in the past two years.
- 4. Please provide a description of any recent historical or ongoing legal proceedings, interviews, or investigations being conducted by any US law Enforcement agencies involving the respondent's firm or team that are related to transactions executed in or on behalf of the Government of Puerto Rico, state agencies, and/or public corporations.
- 5. Please provide a brief description of any work performed for any creditors or guarantors of the Government of Puerto Rico, a state agency, and/or a public corporation debt about their positions in Puerto Rico debt obligations. Indicate whether this activity is ongoing, and if not, when the prior assignment concluded.

I hereby certify that the information set forth above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I have reviewed, and agree to abide by, the Conflict of Interest Policy that is currently in effect.

Signed: _____ Printed Name: _____ Date: ____

5. Nepotism Statement

The Bidder or Proposer or any officer, if the Bidder or Proposer is other than an individual, shall state whether Bidder or Proposer has a relationship, either by blood or marriage, with any official or employee of the Name of Organization by completing the following:

If the Proposer or Bidder is an individual:

- I am not related by blood or marriage to any official or employee of the PRPB.
- \Box I am related by blood or marriage to the following official(s) or employee(s) of the PRPB.

Name and title of PRPB Official:

Name and title of PRPB employee:

Relationship:.

If the Bidder or Proposer is **NOT** an individual:

 \Box The officers of the company submitting this bid or proposal are not related by blood or marriage to any official or employee of the PRPB.

□ The officers of the company submitting this Proposal are related by blood or marriage to the following official(s) or employee(s) of the PRPB.

Name and title of PRPB Official:

Name and title of PRPB employee:

Relationship:

6. Non-Collusion Statement

The undersigned affirm that they are duly authorized to execute this contract, that this company, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this proposal in collusion with any other proposer, and that the contents of this proposal as to prices, terms or conditions of said proposal have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other person engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this proposal.

Vendor: Click or tap here to enter text. Address: Click or tap here to enter text. Phone: Click or tap here to enter text. Fax: Click or tap here to enter text. Email: Click or tap here to enter text. Vendor Official (Printed Name): Click or tap here to enter text. Position with Vendor: Click or tap here to enter text.

Vendor Official Signature:

Date: _____

7. Federal Grant Terms and Clauses

This form must be reviewed, signed, and submitted as part of the respondent's proposal.

1. No Government Obligation to Third Parties. The Owner and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Owner, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

2. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts 31 USC 3801 et seq.

- a. Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 <u>et seq.</u>, "Administrative Remedies for False Claims and
- b. Statements," apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- 3. Access to Records and Reports. The following access to records requirements apply to this contract: (1) The contractor agrees to provide PRPB, the Government of Puerto Rico, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. (2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. (3) The contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.

4. Equal Employment Opportunity 29 CFR, Part 1630, 41 CFR, Part 60 et seq. During the performance of that contract, the contractor agrees as follows: (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. (3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. (4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. (5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. (6) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. (7) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

- 5. Government-wide Suspension and Debarment. By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the following: (1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R.§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). (2) The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. (3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by (insert name of sub recipient). If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to (name of state agency serving as recipient and name of sub recipient), the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. (4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.
- 6. 6) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 29 CFR, §5.5(b). (1) Overtime requirements No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty

hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - The Owner shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. (4) Subcontracts - Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section.

7. Lobbying. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended). Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C.§ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier up to the recipient. APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 – CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000). The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that: (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative

agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

- 8. Clean Air 42 USC § 7401 et seq. Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the State of Texas, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.
- 9. Clean Water Requirements 33 USC 1251 et seq. Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 *et seq.* Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the State of Texas, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.
- 10. **Procurement of Recovered Materials 42 USC 6962.** (1) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA- designated items unless the product cannot be acquired (i) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; (ii) Meeting contract performance requirements; or (iii) At a reasonable price. (2) Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designate items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program.

- 11. **Department of Homeland Security Seal, Logo, and Flags.** The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logo(s), crest(s), or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre-approval.
- 12. Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders. This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the contract only. The contractor will comply with all applicable federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.

Name of Certifying Official:	
Signature of Certifying Official:	
Date Signed:	